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       1                         P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from

       3       Volume 6.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Good morning, everyone.

       5       Glad to see everybody made it back here safely today.

       6       We seem to be making pretty good headway, so I see no

       7       sense in slowing the train down.  Let's keep moving.

       8                 We will reconvene, and this is Docket Number

       9       110009-EI, nuclear cost recovery clause.  And the date

      10       is August the 11th, I believe.  I say all that for the

      11       record.

      12                 If I remember correctly, we ended with FP&L

      13       Witness Steven Sim.

      14                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And we dismissed him, well,

      16       for the time being, and so now we're at OPC's Witness

      17       Brian Smith.

      18                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Mr. Smith is here.  He has

      19       not been sworn at this point.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's go ahead and swear in

      21       everybody that's here that's scheduled to speak today

      22       and get that done.

      23                 If I can get you to stand and raise your right

      24       hand.

      25                 (Witnesses collectively sworn.)
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, as Mr. Smith comes

       2       to the stand, I would note that Florida Power & Light

       3       has passed out the complete Exhibit Number 195.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       5                 MR. YOUNG:  And this is based on the rule of

       6       completeness they offered yesterday.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We've already entered

       8       195 into the record?

       9                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

      11                 Mr. McGlothlin.

      12                            BRIAN D. SMITH

      13       was called as a witness on behalf of The Citizens of the

      14       State of Florida and, having been duly sworn, testified

      15       as follows:

      16                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      17       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      18            Q    Please state your full name and business

      19       address, sir.

      20            A    My name is Brian Smith, and my business

      21       address is 1850 Parkway Place, Suite 800, Marietta,

      22       Georgia, 30067.

      23            Q    By whom are you employed, Mr. Smith?

      24            A    I'm employed by GDS Associates.

      25            Q    At our request, did you prepare and submit
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       1       prefiled testimony in this proceeding?

       2            A    Yes, I did.

       3            Q    Do you have that document before you?

       4            A    I do.

       5            Q    Do you have any changes, additions or

       6       corrections to make to the prefiled testimony?

       7            A    I do not.

       8            Q    Do you adopt the content of the prefiled

       9       testimony as your testimony today?

      10            A    Yes.

      11                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I request that the prefiled

      12       testimony be inserted into the record at this point.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert the prefiled

      14       testimony of Mr. Smith into the record as though read.

      15       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      16            Q    Did you also prepare an exhibit to your

      17       testimony, Mr. Smith?

      18            A    Yes, I did.

      19            Q    Do you have any changes or corrections to that

      20       exhibit?

      21            A    I do not.

      22
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       1       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       2            Q    Have you prepared a summary of your testimony?

       3            A    I have.

       4            Q    Please proceed.

       5            A    Thanks.

       6                 Good morning.  The purpose of my testimony is

       7       to suggest a means of evaluating the total cost of

       8       Florida Power & Light's EPU project.  FPL has excluded

       9       sunk costs from its annual evaluation of the project,

      10       and its witnesses have provided testimony that shows

      11       positive benefits to Florida ratepayers using that

      12       methodology.

      13                 Although I agree that sunk costs are typically

      14       excluded from feasibility analyses, I maintain that sunk

      15       costs should be included in this process in order to

      16       determine if ratepayers are better off with a resource

      17       portfolio that includes the EPU project versus a

      18       portfolio that does not include the EPU project.

      19                 The EPU project is evaluated annually and, for

      20       each evaluation, costs spent to date are excluded from

      21       the feasibility analysis.  At the same time, total EPU

      22       costs have increased since the last evaluation was

      23       produced.  The effect of these two things in combination

      24       is that the total cost impact of the EPU project will

      25       never be reflected in the benefit matrix, which is
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       1       included in FPL's testimony.

       2                 I'm at this hearing on behalf of Florida

       3       ratepayers.  I think it's reasonable to show how the EPU

       4       portfolio costs to the ratepayer compares to the cost to

       5       the ratepayer if the EPU project had not been pursued

       6       and an alternate resource portfolio were developed.

       7                 The valuations using that approach show that

       8       the economics have shifted during the course of project

       9       development.  I think it's reasonable to ask why that

      10       has happened and to examine the causes of the changes in

      11       the projections of total costs.

      12                 My testimony shows the impact of an adjustment

      13       to FPL's medium fuel and medium environmental compliance

      14       cost benefit.  If sunk costs are included in the

      15       analysis, FPL's net benefit of $622 million for that

      16       scenario turns into a net cost of 156 million.  These

      17       values relate to testimony initially filed by FPL.

      18                 Subsequent FPL testimony included a revised,

      19       slightly lower net benefit for the same case.  When this

      20       revised value is adjusted to include estimated impacts

      21       of sunk costs, a slightly more negative cost results.

      22                 My testimony also contains a recommendation

      23       that FPL be required to use a breakeven approach in the

      24       evaluation of the EPU project.  This would allow the

      25       determination of how much can be invested in the EPU
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       1       project before that investment yields a present value of

       2       revenue requirements that exceeds the present value of

       3       revenue requirements associated with a non-EPU

       4       portfolio.  This breakeven amount should be the basis

       5       used to determine the maximum amount allowed in rate

       6       base for the EPU project.

       7                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Does that conclude your

       8       summary?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  It does.

      10                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Mr. Smith is available for

      11       cross-examination.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      13                 Florida Power & Light.

      14                 MR. ANDERSON:  FPL has no cross-exam for the

      15       witness, but notes that his testimony remains subject to

      16       the standing objection stated in our motion to strike

      17       yesterday.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So noted.

      19                 Staff?  Other Intervenors?  No?

      20                 MR. YOUNG:  No questions.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Anybody from the board?  .

      22                 Okay.  Do we need to enter any exhibits into

      23       the record?

      24                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I move 100 and 101.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's move exhibits marked
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       1       100 and 101 into the record.

       2                 (Exhibits 100 and 101 admitted into evidence.)

       3                 If that's -- then we're currently done with

       4       this witness; is that correct?

       5                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We have another witness.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We're done with this

       7       witness?

       8                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Dr. Jacobs, yes.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

      10                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      11                        WILLIAM R. JACOBS, JR.

      12       was called as a witness on behalf of the Citizens of the

      13       State of Florida and, having been duly sworn, testified

      14       as follows:

      15                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      16       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      17            Q    Please state your name and business address

      18       for the record, sir.

      19            A    My name is William Jacobs.  My address is 1850

      20       Parkway Place, Marietta, Georgia.

      21            Q    By whom are you employed, Dr. Jacobs?

      22            A    I'm employed by GDS Associates.

      23            Q    On behalf of OPC, did you prepare direct

      24       testimony in this case?

      25            A    Yes, I did.
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       1            Q    Do you have that document before you?

       2            A    I do.

       3            Q    Do you have any changes, additions, or

       4       corrections?

       5            A    Yes, I do.  I have one change.  On page 16 of

       6       my testimony, line 6, the end of that sentence on line

       7       6 stating "90% completion of the work" should be

       8       deleted.  And in place of that it should read,

       9       "Completion of 90 design modification packages."

      10                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We're in the process of

      11       preparing a substitute page to accomplish that change,

      12       Mr. Chairman.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      14       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      15            Q    Do you have any additional corrections to

      16       make, Dr. Jacobs?

      17            A    No.  That's all.

      18            Q    With that correction, do you adopt the

      19       questions and answers in your prefiled testimony as your

      20       testimony today?

      21            A    Yes, I do.

      22            Q    Did you also prepare exhibits to your

      23       testimony that have since been marked as 102 through

      24       114?

      25            A    Yes, that's correct.

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                      1005

       1            Q    Have you prepared a summary for the

       2       Commissioners?

       3            A    Yes, I have.

       4                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Excuse me.  I ask that the

       5       prefiled testimony be inserted at this point.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter Dr. Jacobs'

       7       prefiled testimony as though read.

       8
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       1       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       2            Q    Please summarize your testimony for the

       3       Commissioners.

       4            A    I will.  Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

       5       Commissioners.

       6                 My testimony -- in my testimony I address

       7       three issues that I have identified related to FPL's EPU

       8       projects underway at Turkey Point 3 and 4 and St. Lucie

       9       1 and 2.  These issues are FPL's flawed methodology for

      10       estimating the long-term feasibility of the EPU

      11       projects, exhibiting dramatic and rapid increases in

      12       estimated costs, FPL's imprudence in selecting the

      13       fast-track project management approach for the extremely

      14       complex EPU projects when it had little grasp of what

      15       the EPU projects would cost or what they needed to cost

      16       to remain economically feasible, and finally FPL's

      17       failure to update its estimate of EPU capital costs in

      18       the 2009 hearing when it was clear that the then current

      19       estimates were far above the costs that FPL maintained

      20       was still valued.

      21                 In my testimony in the 2010 NCRC proceeding, I

      22       explained why the CPVRR methodology used by FPL to

      23       demonstrate economic feasibility of the EPU project was

      24       not appropriate and would provide misleading results

      25       when applied to the EPU project due to the uncertain and
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       1       rapidly increasing cost estimates.

       2                 The continued cost increases experienced this

       3       year validate my concerns of last year.  FPL has spent

       4       approximately $700 million on the EPU projects, and the

       5       original estimate presented in the need case of

       6       $1.798 billion has increased $700 million to

       7       $2.48 billion.  Since FPL has spent as much on the

       8       project as the cost has increased, the estimated cost to

       9       complete the project is essentially unchanged, and the

      10       projects remain economically feasible, according to

      11       FPL's methodology.

      12                 This is obviously a situation in which the

      13       results are just not credible.  I recommend that the

      14       Commission require FPL to implement a breakeven cost

      15       methodology for the EPU projects, as they have done for

      16       the Turkey Point 6 and 7 project.

      17                 I investigated how FPL got itself into this

      18       situation.  I found that FPL adopted a fast track

      19       management approach for the project in which FPL's

      20       normal project development process was abandoned and

      21       they committed to the project with essentially no

      22       engineering completed, without a good idea of the cost

      23       for the project, and without even knowing what the

      24       project needed to cost to be economically feasible.

      25       Because essentially none of the design was complete, it
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       1       was not possible to receive fixed or firm price bids,

       2       and the work is being constructed on a time and material

       3       basis.

       4                 Having been in the nuclear power business for

       5       many years, this situation seemed unfortunately

       6       familiar.  The last generation of nuclear power plants

       7       were begun with incomplete designs, extremely optimistic

       8       cost estimates, and built on a time and material basis.

       9       I believe that most of us in this room know the results

      10       of those projects:  Lengthy scheduled delays and massive

      11       cost overruns.

      12                 Based on the results of my review, I conclude

      13       that FPL was imprudent to abandon their normal

      14       construction processes and attempt the EPU projects on a

      15       fast track basis.

      16                 Finally, I was asked to review FPL's decision

      17       to not update the Commission on the most recent cost

      18       estimates for the EPU project during the 2009 NCRC

      19       proceeding.  I reviewed the contemporaneous Executive

      20       Steering Committee presentations in the June through

      21       September 2009 time frame.  I reviewed e-mail

      22       correspondence received in response to discovery.  I

      23       reviewed Concentric Energy's report of their

      24       investigation of this issue.  OPC issued a data request

      25       essentially asking for all of the documents that
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       1       Concentric reviewed and I reviewed those documents.

       2                 By September 2009, the forecast cost of the

       3       EPU projects increased by 444 million over the forecast

       4       costs presented by FPL in May 2009.  As stated in my

       5       testimony, I agree with FPL's consultant John Reed that

       6       FPL should have made the Commission aware of those most

       7       recent cost estimates.

       8                 In my testimony I make the following

       9       recommendations for this Commission's consideration.  I

      10       recommend that the Commission direct FPL to employ a

      11       breakeven analysis as the appropriate tool for which to

      12       assess the long-term feasibility of the EPU project.  I

      13       recommend that this Commission require FPL to perform

      14       separate breakeven analyses for the St. Lucie and Turkey

      15       Point EPU projects.  If the Turkey Point EPU project is

      16       determined to be uneconomic based on this analysis, FPL

      17       should be required to make an affirmative case for

      18       continuing this project.

      19                 I recommend that this Commission find that

      20       FPL's decision to embark on EPU projects using a fast

      21       track methodology was imprudent.  The impact of this

      22       imprudence should be measured in terms of whether

      23       resulting costs exceed the final breakeven analysis as

      24       filed by FPL at the conclusion of the project and

      25       reviewed and approved by the Commission.
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       1                 Finally, I recommend that the Commission find

       2       that FPL failed to provide the best, most current

       3       information regarding its estimate of capital costs

       4       during the September 2009 hearing when it elected to not

       5       update and revise the May 2009 prefiled testimony with

       6       information that was developed between the May filing

       7       date and the August 2009 estimates prepared by EPU

       8       project managers.

       9                 That concludes my opening statement.

      10                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Dr. Jacobs is available for

      11       cross-examination.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Are there any -- do any, any

      13       of the Intervenors have any questions?

      14                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I have no questions.  Thank you,

      15       Mr. Chairman.

      16                 MS. WHITE:  No, sir.  Thanks.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Florida Power & Light?

      18                 MR. ANDERSON:  No questions for the witness.

      19       Thank you.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

      21                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, in lieu of cross for

      22       this witness, OPC and the parties have agreed that Staff

      23       can enter the deposition transcript of Witness Jacobs

      24       into the record in lieu of cross.  And that would be

      25       identified -- Staff requests that it be marked for
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       1       identification purposes as Number 198.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  What will the short title

       3       for that be?

       4                 MR. YOUNG:  Deposition Transcript of Witness

       5       Jacobs.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       7                 (Exhibit 198 marked for identification.)

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  And that will be provided to you.

       9       We're making copies as we speak.

      10                 MR. ANDERSON:  Chairman Graham, could the

      11       record also reflect FPL's continuing objection to the

      12       admissibility of the testimony for the reasons stated in

      13       the motion to strike.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So noted.

      15                 Is Staff good?

      16                 MR. YOUNG:  And with that, Staff has no

      17       questions.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      19                 To the Commission board.  Commissioner Edgar.

      20                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      21                 First, just for my benefit, a clarification

      22       I'd like to ask Mr. Anderson.  Is the FPL objection to

      23       all of this witness's prefiled testimony?

      24                 MR. ANDERSON:  The objection is to the

      25       portions which are specified in green and attached to
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       1       the motion to strike, which address the legal matters

       2       that we discussed at length yesterday.

       3                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  All right.  Thank you.

       4       But obviously you have no questions on any of the

       5       remainder of the prefiled testimony.

       6                 MR. ANDERSON:  That is correct.

       7                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I have just one or two,

       8       if I may.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      10                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Good morning.

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Commissioner.

      12                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yesterday I asked

      13       Mr. Olivera one or two questions, and I said at the time

      14       that I would pose a similar question to you, so I want

      15       to follow through on that.

      16                 And I recognize in your testimony, and you

      17       have given it to us also in your summary, that it is

      18       your belief that FPL failed to provide information to us

      19       that they should have at a certain point in time.

      20                 Is it your belief or opinion that FPL withheld

      21       information that was required to be submitted to the

      22       Commission by either rule or statute?

      23                 THE WITNESS:  That seems to me to be more of a

      24       legal question, but it's my belief that the -- that FPL

      25       should have provided the most up-to-date information
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       1       available to this Commission in order to allow you to

       2       make a decision based on the most current information.

       3                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  And in your

       4       testimony at page 42, line 22, and I'll quote, your

       5       words are, "I recommend that the Commission find that

       6       FPL failed to provide the best, most current information

       7       regarding its estimate of capital costs."  How do you

       8       define "best information"?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Well, that would be the

      10       information of the cost estimate that best reflects

      11       their, their current estimate of what the project will

      12       ultimately cost at the point in time that the testimony

      13       was given.

      14                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Is that possibly

      15       subjective?

      16                 THE WITNESS:  It certainly could be argued.  I

      17       guess the company has argued the other side of that.

      18       But I believe if the, if there were small fluctuations

      19       in the cost estimate, then you could argue that those

      20       weren't relevant or material.  However, from, from the

      21       cost estimate that the company testified to in May 2009,

      22       by the time of the hearing in September, the costs of

      23       the project had gone up $444 million, which is a very

      24       significant and material change.  So I believe if you

      25       have that degree of change, that should have been
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       1       provided to the Commission.

       2                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  One second.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

       4                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  One of the things I'm

       5       grappling with is the timing of everything, and of

       6       course we need to come back and, and look to the

       7       statutes and the rules as guidance for our decisions and

       8       for processes and procedures.  And I understand your

       9       point about there being a legal question, and I'm sure

      10       that will be briefed and I look forward to that.  But

      11       yet when I'm trying to think timeline of information

      12       coming in and going through processes and procedures and

      13       our need for, as has been stated, accurate information,

      14       I'm trying to find what to hang this fail to provide

      15       current information.  Again, it just seems somewhat

      16       subjective.  So I realize you've answered this question

      17       over and over and over, but I'm going to ask you to do

      18       it again.

      19                 How do -- how -- what are you basing current

      20       and best upon in your testimony before us?

      21                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I'm basing it on the

      22       review of documents provided by the company, in

      23       particular the July 25th, 2009, presentation to the

      24       Executive Steering Committee that indicated a

      25       $300 million cost increase was recognized in July of
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       1       2009.  And again an August estimate increased the cost

       2       by another $144 million.  So by the time of the

       3       September hearing, it just seems clear to me that there

       4       was very compelling evidence that the cost of the

       5       project was going up dramatically, and so --

       6                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Future estimated costs?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Future, yes.  Total, total

       8       costs, total estimated costs.

       9                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Not costs incurred.

      10                 THE WITNESS:  That's right, not costs

      11       incurred.  And it continued to go up even beyond that

      12       point.  So, I mean, I think there was no credible

      13       evidence that those costs were, were not accurate and

      14       that the cost testified to in 2009 was, was stale by

      15       that time, in May of 2009.  Sorry.

      16                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis.

      18                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      19       And I have a couple of questions for this witness.

      20                 And I want to focus on your testimony on page

      21       14 concerning the imprudence of FPL's management of the

      22       EPU products -- or projects.

      23                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      24                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And not focusing on the

      25       decision to fast track or not, where a good portion of
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       1       your testimony focuses on that, and you did indicate

       2       that, I believe it's on page 21, on whether or not the

       3       company was concerned about this situation.  And I

       4       assume by the situation is the percentage of completion

       5       of the design or other preliminary work; is that

       6       correct?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Uh-huh.

       8                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And you indicated that

       9       they were concerned.  Again, focusing on 2009 and 2010,

      10       did you see or find evidence of any action taken by FPL

      11       in 2009 and 2010 was imprudent in reaction to this, this

      12       concern?

      13                 THE WITNESS:  No.  No, I didn't.  They were,

      14       they were committed to a fast track approach.  The

      15       results of that commitment were the costs were

      16       increasing and the scope of the project was increasing

      17       beyond what they had originally estimated it to be.  But

      18       by the 2009/2010 time frame they were committed to that

      19       approach, and I believe they were addressing those

      20       issues prudently at that point in time.

      21                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  So the, the actions that

      22       you list, or at least one of them that you list on page

      23       22, where FPL has hired an outside estimating firm to

      24       help cost out the completion, there was also the

      25       discussion on the option of them self-performing some of
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       1       the work, those decisions, would you feel those are

       2       imprudent or prudent, again in 2009 and 2010?

       3                 THE WITNESS:  I believe those are prudent.

       4       The reason those are in here was just to demonstrate

       5       that, again, that when they initiated this project, they

       6       didn't have a firm grasp for the scope or the, or the

       7       costs going forward.  So by this time they called in

       8       help to help them get a better estimate, and I think

       9       that was prudent.

      10                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And then I have

      11       one question on one of your exhibits, and this will be

      12       my last question, Mr. Chairman.  It's the graph that

      13       shows the percent complete.  I forget which exhibit that

      14       is. I believe it's WRJ-FPL-4.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Let me, if I may, correct

      16       before, we go any further, one thing.  The numbers on

      17       the side are not percentage numbers.  Those are the

      18       number of modification packages.

      19                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  That was the

      20       question that I had.

      21                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

      22                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And what does that

      23       number represent?

      24                 THE WITNESS:  I think there was some confusion

      25       earlier about what those numbers represented.  But, in

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                      1061

       1       fact, that was the, that was the point of the correction

       2       I made to my testimony earlier when I began.

       3                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Is that those are actually

       5       design modification packages, not a percentage complete.

       6                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And did you clarify in

       7       your testimony -- I believe you did, but, again, I want

       8       to avoid confusion.  On the number of mods complete and

       9       manhours, there was an assessment on the earned value or

      10       actually work that has been done on each one of those

      11       mods in order to determine; is that correct?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

      13                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I

      14       have no further questions.

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

      16                 Commissioner Brisé.

      17                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      18                 I have two questions, one going back to the

      19       line of questioning that Commissioner Edgar was on, and

      20       I'm going to ask you a very specific question.

      21                 So from your perspective, even if the company

      22       hadn't gone through its normal processes of vetting the

      23       information, you think that information should have

      24       brought, been brought to the Commission; is that your

      25       perspective?

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                      1062

       1                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

       2                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  So then -- but

       3       from your perspective you think that that is the best

       4       and most accurate information that should be provided to

       5       the Commission, providing that all of the processes

       6       internally by the company have not been put in place

       7       with respect to those numbers?

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I think they could have

       9       presented the information in that light:  Our current

      10       formal estimate is the May 2009 estimate; however, we

      11       have very strong indications that the costs are going

      12       up.  This is our current estimate; it may change

      13       slightly.  But I think they should have provided that

      14       information in that light.

      15                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  But you would agree that

      16       reasonable people could disagree on the fact on whether

      17       you think that information should have been brought

      18       forth from the company's perspective?

      19                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I believe reasonable

      20       people have disagreed on that, so I would agree with

      21       you.

      22                 (Laughter.)

      23                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  All right.

      24                 And, and down the path of 2009 and 2010, the

      25       actions that the company has taken between 2009 and 2010
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       1       with respect to projected costs and all of that, from

       2       your perspective, limiting to 2009, 2010, were the

       3       projected costs and the costs that were incurred

       4       actually prudent?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  I didn't fully

       6       understand that.  Could you rephrase that or repeat

       7       that?

       8                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Sure.  When looking at

       9       2009 and 2010, we will say -- I'm asking you do you

      10       think the actions that the company has taken with

      11       respect to the project in question were prudent?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I believe I addressed that

      13       earlier.  But by the time -- once they had committed on

      14       the fast track project, they were sort of in the

      15       reactive mode and they were, they were reacting as best

      16       they could.  And during that time frame I believe they

      17       were acting prudently once they got -- initiated the

      18       project as they had.

      19                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  The reason I asked

      20       that question is because we're, we're looking at 2009

      21       and 2010.

      22                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

      23                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  So -- thank you.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown.

      25                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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       1                 And now I just have to ask a question as a

       2       follow-up to Commissioner Edgar's, because I was not

       3       completely satisfied with the answer that you gave

       4       regarding -- I know you're not a lawyer, but she asked

       5       you a question, Commissioner Edgar asked you a question

       6       about whether the company was required under law, under

       7       statute or rule to provide that information in

       8       September.  And your answer -- if you could just

       9       elaborate a little bit more for me.

      10                 THE WITNESS:  I'm afraid I'm going to have to

      11       give the same answer in that I'm not an attorney and I'm

      12       not really able to speak on what's required by rule or

      13       by law.  But I think it is inherently the company's

      14       responsibility to provide the most up-to-date and

      15       accurate information to this Commission so you can have

      16       that information in your decision-making process.

      17                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  OPC for

      19       redirect?

      20                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      21       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      22            Q    Dr. Jacobs, with respect to the questions from

      23       Commissioners regarding your review of documents

      24       indicating that the estimate of capital costs had

      25       increased after the May 2009 prefiled testimony had been
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       1       submitted, did your review of those documents give you a

       2       sense of whether the project managers regarded the

       3       May 2009 estimate or the revised estimates in the

       4       July/August time frame as their view of the current

       5       situation?

       6            A    Yes.  I believe they -- the July 2009 was a

       7       very detailed and specific meeting.  And I think after

       8       that meeting, they, which indicated an increase of

       9       $300 million in costs, I believe after that meeting,

      10       that was the cost estimate that was the operative

      11       estimate by the FPL managers.

      12            Q    And the Commissioners asked you some questions

      13       about the actions that FPL took in the 2009/2010 time

      14       frame.  Do you have an opinion as to whether those

      15       actions have, have fully mitigated the impact on

      16       ratepayers or the decision to fast track this project?

      17            A    No, they have not.  They've been, they've been

      18       reacting to the situation that they found themselves in

      19       as a result of the decision to fast track the project,

      20       and they have not fully mitigated the costs or impact.

      21                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Thank you.  I have nothing

      22       further.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We have some exhibits

      24       to enter into the record.

      25                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I move Exhibits 102 through
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       1       114.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  102 through 114.

       3                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We also have the revised and

       4       corrected page to distribute at this point.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes, that as well, if

       6       there's no objections.

       7                 (Exhibits 102 through 114 admitted into

       8       evidence.)

       9                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, at this time Staff

      10       moves 198.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Also Staff's 198.  Thank

      12       you, sir.

      13                 (Exhibit 198 admitted into evidence.)

      14                 MR. ANDERSON:  Also, Chairman Graham, as

      15       proposed Exhibit 199, FPL offers some additional

      16       excerpts from the Kundalkar deposition.  Some pages are

      17       in WRJ-11, Dr. Jacobs' attachment, and under the rule of

      18       completeness we offer some additional pages.  We'll

      19       distribute those now.  That will be Exhibit 199.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'll wait for you to

      21       distribute to see if there's any objections.

      22                 This is Exhibit Number 199.  Is there any

      23       objection to entering 199 into the record?

      24                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  None from OPC.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  No objections.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Then it's so.

       3                 (Exhibit 199 marked for identification and

       4       admitted into evidence.)

       5                 Okay.  Are we done with Dr. Jacobs for now?

       6                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes, sir.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sir, thank you very much for

       8       your testimony today.

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      11                 OPC, is that it for your witnesses?

      12                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes, sir.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

      14                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, at this time Staff

      15       calls Lynn Fisher and David Rich to the stand.  And I

      16       think they have been sworn.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let the record show they

      18       both indicated they have been sworn.

      19                             DAVID RICH

      20                                 AND

      21                             LYNN FISHER

      22       were called as witnesses on behalf of the Florida Public

      23       Service Commission and, having been duly sworn,

      24       testified as follows:

      25                          DIRECT EXAMINATION
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  Good morning.

       2                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Rich)  Good morning.

       3                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Fisher)  Good morning.

       4       BY MR. YOUNG:

       5            Q    Can you please state your full name and

       6       business address for the record.

       7            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  My name is Lynn Fisher.  My

       8       business address is 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard,

       9       Tallahassee, Florida.

      10            Q    By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

      11            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  I'm employed by the Florida

      12       Public Service Commission as a Government Analyst II in

      13       the Office of Auditing and Performance Analysis.

      14            Q    All right.  Mr. Rich, can you please state

      15       your full name and business address for the record?

      16            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes.  My name is David Rich.

      17       My business address is 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard,

      18       Tallahassee, Florida, 32399.

      19            Q    By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

      20            A    (By Mr. Rich)  The Florida Public Service

      21       Commission.  I'm an Operations Review Specialist.

      22            Q    Have you all jointly filed prefiled testimony

      23       consisting of five pages in this docket?

      24            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Yes.

      25            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, we have.  Yes.
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       1            Q    Do you have any changes or corrections to that

       2       testimony, that joint prefiled testimony?

       3            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  No.

       4            A    (By Mr. Rich)  No, we don't.

       5                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, at this time, I

       6       request -- Staff requests that the joint prefiled

       7       testimony of Mr. Fisher and Mr. Rich be entered into the

       8       record as though read.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter the joint

      10       prefiled testimony of Fish and Rich into the record --

      11       I'm sorry -- Fisher and Rich into the record as though

      12       read.

      13       BY MR. YOUNG:

      14            Q    Did you have two exhibits attached to your

      15       joint prefiled testimony as relates to Florida Power &

      16       Light, which is entitled 2010 Review of Florida Power &

      17       Light Company's Project Management Internal Controls for

      18       Nuclear Plant Uprate and Construction Projects, and 2009

      19       Review of Florida Power & Light Company Project

      20       Management Internal Controls for Nuclear Plant Uprate

      21       and Construction Projects?

      22            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, we did.

      23            Q    Do you have any changes or corrections to

      24       those exhibits?

      25            A    (By Mr. Rich)  No.
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, at this time I will

       2       identify and ask that those identify, those exhibits be

       3       marked as exhibits, which are FR-1 and

       4       FR-2 respectively, and FR -- and those are Exhibit

       5       Numbers 115 and 116 on Staff's Comprehensive Exhibit

       6       List.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       8

       9

      10

      11

      12

      13

      14

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1

       2       BY MR. YOUNG:

       3            Q    Do you have -- do you all have a prepared

       4       summary of your joint prefiled testimony today?

       5            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes.

       6            Q    Can you please provide that summary.

       7            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes.  Thank you.

       8                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners.

       9                 Mr. Fisher and my testimony presents, presents

      10       a review of the project controls in key events impacting

      11       Florida Power & Light's St. Lucie 1 and 2 and Turkey

      12       Point 3 and 4 uprate project, and the Turkey Point 6 and

      13       7 new nuclear project during 2007 -- correction, 2010

      14       into 2011.

      15                 Additionally, Staff conducted a follow-up

      16       review of events leading to and following the extended

      17       power uprate management changes in 2009.  Project

      18       controls examined during our review include the areas of

      19       planning, management and organization, cost and schedule

      20       controls, contractor selection and management, auditing

      21       and quality assurance for new nuclear construction.

      22                 During 2010, Florida Power & Light slightly

      23       revised its cost estimates for new nuclear construction

      24       at Turkey Point Units 6 and 7.  The final estimated cost

      25       now lies in a range from 12.85 billion to
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       1       $18.75 billion.  The in-service dates for Turkey Point

       2       Units 6 and 7 are 2022 and 2023 respectively.

       3                 Florida Power & Light filed its combined

       4       operating license application with the Nuclear

       5       Regulatory Commission in June 2009 and is currently

       6       focused on responding to requests for additional

       7       information from the NRC.  The company expects to

       8       receive final approval in late 2013, with major site

       9       preparation work beginning the following year.

      10                 Florida Power & Light's decision to remove the

      11       limited work authorization from its application in

      12       November 2009 ensures that major construction will not

      13       begin until after the full license approval.

      14                 Florida Power & Light did not execute an

      15       engineering procurement and construction contract for

      16       Turkey Point 6 and 7 during the year 2010.  Staff

      17       believes that the window of opportunity for negotiating

      18       and signing such a contract is still relatively distant,

      19       but must be in place by 2013 or 2014 to avoid schedule

      20       impact.

      21                 The reservation agreement for long-lead

      22       forging has again been extended, this time until

      23       September of this year.  Staff believes that forging

      24       issues likewise must be settled and manufacturing begun

      25       by 2015 in order to meet current in-service dates.
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       1                 Staff made no specific recommendations in this

       2       report for the Turkey Point 6 and 7 project, although we

       3       believe that the Commission should continue to closely

       4       monitor all new nuclear controls, costs, activities, and

       5       schedule as the Turkey Point 6 and 7 project transitions

       6       from licensing to site preparation and construction.

       7                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Fisher)  Commissioners,

       8       Florida Power & Light's uprate project for the St. Lucie

       9       Units 1 and 2 and Turkey Point Units 3 and 4 experienced

      10       several key project developments during 2010.  The

      11       current and nonbinding cost estimate for the extended

      12       power uprate project is 2.3 billion to $2.48 billion.

      13       The high end of this estimate range represents an

      14       increase of 37.9% over the original need determination

      15       estimate of $1.8 billion.

      16                 Several key events impacted the uprates in

      17       2010:  The submittal of the St. Lucie Unit 1 EPU LAR,

      18       the submittal of the St. Lucie Unit 2 EPU LAR, the

      19       submittal of the Turkey Point EPU LAR, and several work

      20       stoppages at Turkey Point and St. Lucie.

      21                 In addition, three of the four remaining

      22       outages have been extended and a vendor project

      23       management team at Turkey Point 3 and 4 have been

      24       removed.

      25                 Additionally, Staff conducted a follow-on
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       1       review of events leading to the EPU management changes

       2       of 2009.  Staff found no evidence of improper or

       3       duplicate invoicing, unnecessary work or rework,

       4       overpayments, overcharging, or other examples of

       5       mismanagement by the former EPU management team.

       6                 This concludes our summary.

       7                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, I tender the

       8       witnesses for cross.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Intervenors?

      10                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I have questions.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      12                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.

      13                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      14       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      15            Q    Good morning, gentlemen.

      16            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Good morning.

      17            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Good morning.

      18            Q    Vicki Kaufman for the Florida Industrial Power

      19       Users Group.

      20                 Can I take from your summary that, Mr. Fisher,

      21       you were the person responsible for issues relating to

      22       the EPU uprate?

      23            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  I wrote the portion of our

      24       report that related to EPU.  However, Mr. Rich conducted

      25       the follow-up portion, so -- I was involved in a
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       1       different audit at that time.  So he would be the one

       2       that, that would handle most of the questions relating

       3       to the follow-up.

       4            Q    Okay.

       5            A    (By Mr. Rich)  I might also add, Ms. Kaufman,

       6       that our work is, is a combined effort, and that

       7       although we perhaps spent more time and energy on

       8       certain aspects of it and delineated the work in that

       9       manner, we're both fully capable of answering.  We'll

      10       opine and bump in when we think it's appropriate, if

      11       that's all right with you.

      12            Q    Absolutely.  And so what I'll do is I'll ask

      13       my question, and you gentlemen decide who's the

      14       appropriate person.  And if one finishes and the other

      15       has a comment to add, that's perfectly fine.

      16            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Thank you.

      17            Q    The area that I want to talk to you about, and

      18       I'm going to be looking at Exhibit 115, which is your

      19       2010 review.

      20            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Uh-huh.

      21            Q    And I want to just talk to you for a moment

      22       about the extended power uprate events and developments.

      23       And if you can look, on my copy it's Section 1.4.3 in

      24       the beginning.

      25            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Could you cite a page for me,
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       1       please?

       2            Q    I think it's page 4 of the report, as opposed

       3       to your testimony.

       4            A    (By Mr. Rich) Page 4.  Thank you.

       5            Q    And let me know when you're there.

       6                 And I think, Mr. Fisher, you alluded to this

       7       area in your summary.  But if you look under Section,

       8       it's actually 1.4.3, the third paragraph there, you say,

       9       "During 2009, FPL's senior management made the decision

      10       to replace the EPU management team.  Senior management

      11       appears to have believed the management team could not

      12       provide the necessary control of EPC contractor

      13       estimates and that more aggressive actions were

      14       required."  Do you see that?

      15            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Yes.

      16            Q    Can you explain, first of all, how you reached

      17       your conclusion that senior management thought that the

      18       management team of the EPU project couldn't provide the

      19       necessary controls?

      20            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Yes.  Most of this was

      21       related to the company's response to our questions

      22       related to why, why was there a change made to the team.

      23       The response indicated that senior management was not

      24       totally happy with the, with the ability to, to question

      25       and to push back on the vendor, in this case the EPC
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       1       vendor, and therefore felt like there needed to be a

       2       change in management.

       3            Q    Was, was the entire management team replaced

       4       for the EPU project?

       5            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  At least two, two of the VPs

       6       were.  I'm not sure that -- I think there are still

       7       people involved there that were on the team that, that

       8       are working today.

       9            Q    Let me rephrase that inartful question.

      10                 Were the, the top managers or top executives

      11       on that team replaced?

      12            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Yes.  One I think was going

      13       for an additional, a different job and so forth.  So, in

      14       other words, was, was, I think continued to work with

      15       the company for a while and then later left.

      16            Q    In a different capacity they continued to work

      17       for FPL.

      18            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Yes.  Yes.  A different

      19       capacity.  Thank you.

      20            Q    And you make some reference, I guess, to what

      21       we've come to call the Concentric report.  You reviewed

      22       that report?

      23            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Yes.

      24            Q    And Concentric came to a similar opinion

      25       regarding the performance of the prior EPU team, did
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       1       they not?

       2            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  I'm sorry?

       3            Q    I'm sorry.  In the -- on the same paragraph

       4       I've been looking at, 1.4.3, you talk about an

       5       investigative report by Concentric.

       6            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Uh-huh.

       7            Q    And you say that confirms your opinion

       8       regarding the performance problems with the EPU team.

       9            A    (By Mr. Fisher)  Yes.  That and the company's

      10       response.

      11                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      13                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  No questions.

      14                 MR. WHITLOCK:  No questions, Mr. Chairman.

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Florida Power & Light?

      16                 MR. ANDERSON:  Yes, FPL does have a few

      17       questions.

      18                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      19       BY MR. ANDERSON:

      20            Q    I believe Ms. Kaufman was just asking you some

      21       questions about Exhibit 116, is that right, which was

      22       the report you prepared in July 2010?

      23            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes.

      24            Q    Okay.

      25                 MR. ANDERSON:  I'm going to ask that an
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       1       exhibit be distributed.

       2                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman, just for clarity,

       3       I think it was 115, just so the record is clear.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       5                 MR. YOUNG:  I think it's 116.

       6                 MS. CANO:  I may be able to help.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Unless I'm going crazy, I

       8       have it down as 115.

       9                 MR. YOUNG:  I'm sorry.  It's FR-2, and that's

      10       116.

      11                 MR. ANDERSON:  Okay.  So --

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  That's what Ms. Kaufman was asking

      13       about, FR-2.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I have in my fingers, it's

      15       FR-2, but the cover sheet says "July 2010."  And looking

      16       at the exhibit sheet, I have 115, FR-1, and the

      17       description says "2010 Review of Florida Power & Light."

      18                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman.  I've

      19       created a lot of confusion.  Mr. Anderson or Ms. Cano is

      20       correct.  It's 116.  I apologize.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Thanks for confusing

      22       me.

      23                 (Laughter.)

      24                 Let's continue.

      25                 MR. ANDERSON:  Great.  Thank you.

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                      1084

       1       BY MR. ANDERSON:

       2            Q    Now that we're clear, the questions you were

       3       just asked pertain to Exhibit 116 from July 2010; is

       4       that right?

       5            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes.

       6            Q    And since that time you've prepared a new

       7       report, which is the July 2011 report, Exhibit 115; is

       8       that correct?

       9            A    (By Mr. Rich)  That's correct.  Yes.

      10            Q    Okay.  I've distributed a document which we've

      11       marked as -- I'd asked be marked as Exhibit Number 200,

      12       I think we're up to.  And the short name for this would

      13       be EPU 2009 Management Change, FPSC Audit Work Paper.

      14       Do you have that before you?

      15            A    (By Mr. Rich)  I do, yes.

      16                 (Exhibit 200 marked for identification.)

      17       BY MR. ANDERSON:

      18            Q    Okay.  Is this a document that you gentlemen

      19       prepared?

      20            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Mr. Fisher was not involved in

      21       the EPU look back.  This is a document I prepared.

      22            Q    Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Rich.  And in roughly

      23       what time period do you prepare this document?

      24            A    (By Mr. Rich) We conducted this review between

      25       September and December of last year.
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       1            Q    Okay.  And that's after the report Ms. Kaufman

       2       just asked you about; right?

       3            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, it is.

       4            Q    Okay.  And just directing your attention to

       5       this document, it states an issue at the top, "Did the

       6       2009 EPU management changes cause or directly lead to

       7       cost overruns, unnecessary work or rework?  Was the EPU

       8       management changeover the result of mismanagement?"

       9       That was the issue you were addressing, Mr. Rich?

      10            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, it was.

      11            Q    Then directing down about a third of the way

      12       down the page under Condition, it says, "What is

      13       happening?  In concluding days of the 2010 hearings,

      14       several Commissioners had questions they felt were not

      15       adequately addressed by FPL during the proceedings.

      16       These form the basis of a follow-on review conducted in

      17       late 2010.  The majority of questions were directly

      18       investigated and answered by a thorough review of

      19       circumstances and events leading up to and following the

      20       changeover."  Did I read that correctly?

      21            A    (By Mr. Rich)  You did.  But I would not place

      22       the emphasis on it that you did, sir.

      23            Q    Okay.  I understand.  But I read the document

      24       correctly?

      25            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, you did.
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       1            Q    And that's what kind of teed up the additional

       2       work you did in the latter part of, of 2010 in preparing

       3       this report for 2011?

       4            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, sir.  If I might, a

       5       thorough review was done of the transcript from last

       6       year.  The Commissioners' questions, then serving and

       7       currently serving, were excerpted from that.  Those

       8       questions formed the basis of the following review.

       9            Q    Very good.  Thank you.  And it relates here

      10       work that you did.  You did five document requests; is

      11       that right?

      12            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, there were five.

      13            Q    Six on-site or phone interviews with FPL

      14       personnel?

      15            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes.

      16            Q    You talked to Mr. Reed, the CEO of Concentric

      17       Energy Advisors, in person?

      18            A    (By Mr. Rich)  We did, yes.

      19            Q    And then the third paragraph -- let me see if

      20       I've got this right.  "While the documentary evidence

      21       and interviews in many places strongly support the

      22       Concentric findings, there was no direct or compelling

      23       evidence discovered of unnecessary rework, overpayments

      24       or overcharging or mismanagement on the part of the

      25       former EPU management team."  Did I get that right?
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       1            A    (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, you did.

       2            Q    Okay.  And then going on, "Staff would opine

       3       that FPL missed a golden opportunity to be fully

       4       forthcoming with the Commission and the public about

       5       anticipated cost increases, but was not compelled to

       6       divulge more information than they did under current

       7       Commission orders or Florida Statutes."  Did I get that

       8       right?

       9            A    (By Mr. Rich)  That's my opinion.  Yes.

      10            Q    Right.

      11                 MR. ANDERSON:  FPL has nothing further, but

      12       we'll offer Exhibit 200 into evidence.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      14                 Staff?  I'm sorry.  These are your witnesses.

      15                 Commission board?

      16                 Commissioner Balbis.

      17                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      18                 I have a question for either of you, whoever

      19       is best to answer.  And, again, based on this exhibit

      20       that was just passed out with the Bureau of Performance

      21       Analysis finding summary, with the complete change of

      22       the management team, did you find that -- and you have

      23       here no examples of overpayments, overcharging, or

      24       mismanagement.  I assume that has to do with the vendors

      25       that are working for FPL; is that correct?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Rich)  Yes, sir.  If I

       2       might explain how we did that.

       3                 For a period of three months before the

       4       changeover and three months after we looked at 55,

       5       correction, 54% of the total expenditures by invoice of

       6       the five, five major vendors, and for the three-month

       7       period after the EPU changeover we looked at those same

       8       five vendors, 64% of expenditures.  In those invoices we

       9       saw no evidence of duplicative work, overpayment,

      10       overcharging by the contractor.  In fact, we saw

      11       evidence of appropriate push back when the vendor tried

      12       to overcharge.

      13                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And did you analyze any

      14       of the work performed by FPL?  And just to clarify, I

      15       mean, I would assume that the, the changing of an entire

      16       management team would require a lot of time getting up

      17       to speed for the personnel, et cetera.  I mean, did your

      18       analysis include the internal work by FPL?

      19                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Rich)  I don't know what

      20       degree to which you're referring as far as our

      21       investigation, sir.  But I would answer it in this way,

      22       that we queried FPL senior executives on the changeover

      23       process and also looked at personnel records for both

      24       the incoming and the outgoing personnel involved.  There

      25       was no evidence of dissatisfaction on the part of senior
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       1       FPL executives with the previous management of the EPU.

       2       In my investigation or my review it didn't appear that

       3       that was a -- was causation for the changeover.

       4                 And in querying FPL senior representatives,

       5       they, they opined that this was a matter of normal

       6       progression and transition in the company that had been

       7       done previously in the past and was a normal course of

       8       business events, to transition as the project

       9       transitioned, to get the right people in the right jobs

      10       at the right time.

      11                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  So you're saying that

      12       FPL's response was, it was the normal process to change

      13       out the entire management team; is that correct?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Rich)  No, sir, that's

      15       not my response.  The response was in changing out

      16       Mr. Kundalkar specifically it would have been a normal

      17       transition process.

      18                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And, again, I

      19       guess what I'm focusing on is, is I would assume that

      20       changing out of a management team for any project

      21       requires a lot of -- could require duplicative work by

      22       the management team, again, getting up to speed,

      23       additional hours spent that, you know, you could

      24       consider rework by the management team because the other

      25       team was up to speed.  I mean, did you review that?  Do
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       1       you have any indications of that?

       2                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Rich)  No, sir.  We

       3       didn't review that.  We focused on the vendor as far as

       4       rework or duplicative work went.

       5                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I

       6       have nothing further.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff for redirect.

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  Just one question.

       9                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      10       BY MR. YOUNG:

      11            Q    Earlier in your, your response to Mr. Anderson

      12       under Condition 2, what's happening, you said you would

      13       not place the emphasis that Mr. Anderson placed on

      14       reading that first paragraph.  Can you explain why you

      15       would not place that emphasis on that?

      16            A    (By Mr. Rich)  It's a subjective opinion, but

      17       I would read the sentence as written without more

      18       emphasis on the word "thorough."

      19                 MR. YOUNG:  No further questions.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We have some exhibits

      21       to enter?

      22                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.  At this time Staff

      23       moves 115 and 116 into the record.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll move 115 and 116 into

      25       the record.
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       1                 (Exhibits 115 and 116 admitted into evidence.)

       2                 MR. ANDERSON:  FPL offers Exhibit 200 into the

       3       record.

       4                 MR. YOUNG:  No objection.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I don't see any objections,

       6       so we'll offer, enter -- I'm sorry.  We'll enter Exhibit

       7       Number 200 into the record as well.

       8                 (Exhibit 200 admitted into evidence.)

       9                 Staff, are we finished with this witness?

      10                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.  We ask that the

      11       witnesses be excused from the hearing.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do we have any objection to

      13       the two witnesses being excused?

      14                 Seeing none, gentlemen, thank you very much

      15       for your testimony today.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Rich)  Thank you, Mr.

      17       Chairman.

      18                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, at this time, with

      19       the witnesses being excused, Staff will ask that

      20       Ms. Kathy Welch's prefiled exhibit and -- prefiled

      21       testimony and exhibits be entered into the record.  She

      22       is a stipulated witness that the parties all agree to

      23       stipulate, and the Commissioners do not have any

      24       questions for Ms. Welch.  And that's 117 -- I'm sorry.

      25       Those are Exhibits 117, 118, 119, and 120, along with
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       1       her prefiled direct testimony.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  117, 18, 19, and 20.

       3       Ms. Welch was already stipulated.  There's no objection

       4       to entering those into the record?

       5                 Seeing none, we'll do that.

       6                 (Exhibits 117, 118, 119, 120 admitted

       7       evidence.)

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  And just for the record, we did

       9       move her testimony into the record.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

      11

      12

      13

      14

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, I

       2       think we are on FPL's rebuttal.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  It seems like a nice

       4       little place to take a pause.  So I have 10:30.  Let's

       5       take a five-minute break.  We'll reconvene at 10:35.

       6                 (Recess taken.)

       7                 Okay.  We will reconvene and we are at

       8       rebuttal.

       9                 Mr. Anderson, Florida Power & Light's got the

      10       floor.

      11                 MR. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Chairman Graham.  At

      12       this time, FPL would call as its first rebuttal witness

      13       our President and Chief Executive Officer, Armando

      14       Olivera, who the record will show was previously sworn

      15       yesterday afternoon.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Welcome.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      18                           ARMANDO OLIVERA

      19       was called as a rebuttal witness on behalf of Florida

      20       Power & Light Company and, having been duly sworn,

      21       testified as follows:

      22                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      23       BY MR. ANDERSON:

      24            Q    Good morning, Mr. Olivera.

      25            A    Good morning, Mr. Anderson.
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       1            Q    Will you please reintroduce yourself for the

       2       record.

       3            A    I'm Armando Olivera.  I work for Florida Power

       4       & Light.  I'm President and Chief Executive Officer.

       5            Q    Have you prepared and caused to be filed two

       6       pages of prefiled rebuttal testimony in this proceeding

       7       on July 25, 2011?

       8            A    I have.

       9            Q    Do you have any changes or revisions to your

      10       rebuttal testimony?

      11            A    No.

      12            Q    If I asked you the same questions contained in

      13       your prefiled rebuttal testimony, would your answers be

      14       the same?

      15            A    Yes.

      16                 MR. ANDERSON:  Chairman Graham, FPL requests

      17       that the prefiled rebuttal testimony be inserted into

      18       the record as though read.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert into the

      20       record, Mr. Olivera's rebuttal into the record as though

      21       read.

      22                 MR. ANDERSON:  We note for the record there

      23       are no exhibits.

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. ANDERSON:

       2            Q    Mr. Olivera, would you please provide your

       3       summary to the Commission.

       4            A    Thank you.

       5                 FPL would not have undertaken the extended

       6       power uprate project on an expedited basis absent the

       7       application of the nuclear cost recovery framework to

       8       the project and absent the Commission's need

       9       determination approving FPL's pursuit of the uprate

      10       project on an expedited basis.

      11                 The Office of Public Counsel's assertion that

      12       the capital cost of the project should be disallowed to

      13       the extent that uprate generation costs may be projected

      14       to exceed natural gas generation costs is a heads win,

      15       tails you lose approach.  This suggested result is

      16       absolutely contrary to the regulatory framework provided

      17       by -- for by the Legislature and the Commission aimed at

      18       promoting the development of new nuclear generation.

      19                 In 2007, the EPU project need determination

      20       case, our company made it very clear that the regulatory

      21       framework for nuclear cost recovery was essential to

      22       FPL's willingness to undertake this capital intensive

      23       nuclear investment on an expedited basis.

      24                 The Commission should reject the attempt to

      25       revisit this decision in hindsight three years after the
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       1       issuance of the need determination approving the

       2       project.

       3                 This concludes my summary.

       4                 MR. ANDERSON:  Mr. Olivera is available for

       5       cross-examination.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Intervenors?

       7                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'll begin.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. McGlothlin.

       9                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      10       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      11            Q    Sir, refer to page 1 of your prefiled rebuttal

      12       testimony, and you also made this statement during your

      13       summary.  At lines 20 through 22, you say, "Mr. Jacobs

      14       asserts that capital costs of the EPU project should be

      15       disallowed to the extent EPU generation costs may be

      16       projected to exceed natural gas generation costs."

      17                 Isn't it true, Mr. Olivera, that Dr. Jacobs'

      18       mechanism would involve not just natural gas generation

      19       costs but the present value of the revenue requirements

      20       of FPL's entire system?

      21            A    Yes.  But the natural gas prices have a huge

      22       impact on the analysis.  When this Commission approved

      23       the uprate project, natural gas that year was $9.  Today

      24       natural gas is under $4, and that would have a big

      25       impact on this.  And it's precisely the issue that we're
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       1       arguing, which is you can't -- we have no control of

       2       natural gas, and you want to go back and rewrite the

       3       history and say, okay, three years later the price of

       4       natural gas has changed, and we're going to rerun the

       5       analysis and we're going to rerun the breakeven

       6       analysis.  That was precisely what the rule was intended

       7       to address, precisely what the legislation was intended

       8       to address.

       9            Q    You said you would rerun the breakeven

      10       analysis.  Isn't it true that, isn't it true that FPL

      11       has not performed and quantified the breakeven value for

      12       the EPU project?

      13            A    I'm sorry.  I didn't follow your question.

      14            Q    In your statement a moment ago you said that

      15       we're calling on FPL to rerun the breakeven analysis.

      16       I'm using breakeven in terms, in terms of the

      17       quantification of the maximum value in dollars per KW

      18       that FPL could spend on the uprate project and remain at

      19       or below the corresponding revenue requirement of the

      20       alternative portfolio.

      21                 And isn't it true that earlier witnesses for

      22       FPL in this case have said that FPL has not performed

      23       such a breakeven analysis for the uprate project?

      24            A    I believe that Mr. Sim addressed the issue.

      25                 But intuitively, when you have a big change in
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       1       natural gas prices, that would change the economics.

       2       Now we have run the analysis based on the current

       3       forward prices, and even at the current forward prices

       4       the uprate projects still make a lot of economic sense

       5       for our customers, not only because they provide real

       6       benefits, savings to the customers, but also because

       7       they provide fuel diversity.  They represent a hedge on

       8       our system.

       9                 And I'd just like to give you one example.

      10       Last year --

      11            Q    Excuse me, sir.

      12                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I believe that's well beyond

      13       the scope of my question, Mr. Chairman.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I agree.

      15                 Mr. Olivera, if you can answer the question,

      16       and you get a little latitude to explain your answer.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

      18                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  And that's my last question.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      20                 Any of the other Intervenors?

      21                 Ms. Kaufman.

      22                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      23       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      24            Q    Good morning again, Mr. Olivera.

      25            A    Good morning.
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       1            Q    I just have one question for you, I think, and

       2       it had to do with some remarks you made in your summary,

       3       and you have them in your prefiled testimony as well.

       4       And basically, as I understood what you said, you're

       5       contending that the legislative framework that is at

       6       issue in this case, that you relied upon that when you

       7       moved forward with the EPU project.

       8            A    We relied on both the legislation and the rule

       9       and the decision made by this Commission when they

      10       approved the uprate project.

      11            Q    Let me ask you this about the legislative

      12       framework and rule.  Is there anywhere in that statute

      13       or rule that permits the company to recover costs from

      14       ratepayers that are either unreasonable or unnecessary?

      15            A    I believe that the -- that --

      16            Q    If you wouldn't mind answering yes or no, I

      17       would appreciate that.

      18            A    No, by my interpretation.  I believe that the

      19       determination was prudency versus imprudency, and that's

      20       how we proceeded with this project.

      21            Q    But you would agree that there's no, there's

      22       no language in the rule or statute that you're relying

      23       on that would authorize the company to recover costs

      24       that are either unnecessary or unreasonable?

      25            A    I would define them that any costs that were
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       1       deemed to be imprudent by the company would not be

       2       recoverable.

       3            Q    Well --

       4            A    Or deemed -- I'm sorry.  Deemed imprudent by

       5       this Commission would not be recoverable.

       6            Q    Well, aren't costs that are unnecessary -- if

       7       you incur unnecessary costs, would that not be an

       8       indicator of imprudence?

       9            A    I don't know what -- if you could define for

      10       me what you mean by "unnecessary."

      11            Q    Unnecessary would be a cost that you did not

      12       need to incur in order to move forward with the project.

      13            A    And thus you would say it would be an

      14       imprudent cost?

      15            Q    I'm asking you that.  I'm asking you, would

      16       you not consider an --

      17            A    Look, I'm not -- I didn't -- I'm not an expert

      18       on the legislation, and you're trying to get me to

      19       define, have a broader definition than the imprudency,

      20       and we rely on the imprudency.

      21            Q    Okay.  I'm not trying to trick you.  I just

      22       wonder that if the company spent dollars that weren't

      23       necessary, you don't, you wouldn't find that imprudent

      24       as you, as you analyze prudency?

      25            A    If we spent dollars --
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       1                 MR. ANDERSON:  FPL objects to this line of

       2       questioning.  It's beyond the scope of Mr. Olivera's

       3       testimony, which is very narrowly focused, and we've

       4       permitted sufficient, I believe.

       5                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman -- if I could be

       6       heard.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

       8                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Olivera has, has told us all

       9       about his views of the regulatory scheme, and I think

      10       that my questions are directly relevant to that, and

      11       they're certainly not outside the scope.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think they are relevant,

      13       and I don't have a problem with the back and forth,

      14       because I believe Mr. Olivera is trying to clarify your

      15       answer before he answers your answer.  I think we should

      16       continue.

      17                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.

      18       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      19            Q    So I'll just ask it one more time and maybe we

      20       can agree or maybe we'll just continue to disagree, and

      21       that's fine, too.

      22                 And my question simply was, if the company

      23       were to expend costs that were unnecessary or not needed

      24       to pursue the project, would you not agree that such

      25       costs would be imprudent, as you define imprudency?
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       1            A    If we -- if the company incurred costs that

       2       were not relevant to the project, then obviously they,

       3       we shouldn't recover those costs under this regulation.

       4                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       6                 SACE.

       7                 MR. WHITLOCK:  No questions, Mr. Chairman.

       8       Thank you.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

      10                 MS. NORRIS:  Staff has no questions.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commission board.

      12                 Commissioner Brown.

      13                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      14                 Mr. Olivera, as a follow-up to Mr.

      15       McGlothlin's question, McGlothlin's question with regard

      16       to why is the project still cost-effective, I'm curious

      17       in hearing that answer.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  It's really cost-effective

      19       because the price of fuel, nuclear fuel, it is so, it's

      20       so low.  If you look, for example, last year we had a

      21       $4 billion fuel bill.  Nuclear produced 20% of the

      22       energy, but yet it only represented $160 million of that

      23       bill.  When you look at the fuel savings associated with

      24       Turkey Point 6 and 7, they, the fuel savings for that

      25       project are $75 billion, as calculated by Mr. Sim.  And
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       1       it's those huge fuel savings that, that I rely on when

       2       we go through all this pain and agony of building a very

       3       complex project with a lot of technical challenges.

       4       It's because the fuel savings are phenomenal, and they,

       5       not only are they real, they provide a real hedge and

       6       fuel diversity for our customers.

       7                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Edgar.

       9                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      10                 Mr. Olivera, in your prefiled testimony and

      11       also in your summary you described that, a portion of

      12       Mr. Jacobs' testimony as, quote, heads I win, tails you

      13       lose.  I'm really not clear on what you mean by that

      14       phrase in the context of your testimony or using the

      15       flip a coin metaphor.  Could you explain to me the point

      16       that you were trying to make by using that phrase?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I'd be happy to.  In this

      18       scenario, it is, it's -- we take all the risk, as laid

      19       by Witness Jacobs, with, with these projects.  But, you

      20       know, all the benefits accrue to, to the customers.  I

      21       mean, in this scenario it assumes, by the way, too, that

      22       you could go out and finance these projects, even if you

      23       have this scheme where it's breakeven.  So any

      24       incremental dollars that we spend would not -- at this

      25       particular point in time, taking a snapshot of where we
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       1       are, which is $4 gas, you know, our -- we -- our

       2       shareholders have to absorb any other costs.  And by the

       3       way, you're assuming that we could go out and finance

       4       this under this scenario, which I'll put that aside.

       5                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I'm not.

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Well, if you want me

       7       to --

       8                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I'm not making that

       9       assumption.

      10                 THE WITNESS:  Well, okay.  Good.  I mean, I'm

      11       happy to address that as well.  Maybe I should address

      12       that and I'll come back to your question.

      13                 In this scenario, we, we spend every dollar

      14       that FPL generates, all the cash it generates, and then

      15       we go out and we borrow more to build these projects.

      16       It's not just this; it's the modernizations that we're

      17       doing.  These projects have created huge customer value.

      18       It's why we have the lowest bills, because they're very

      19       efficient generation.

      20                 But, you know, over time you have to be able

      21       to keep financing that, and that requires going to

      22       investors.  I'm the guy that often has to go talk to

      23       investors and say, this is a good -- you know, you

      24       should allow us to continue to borrow because we are

      25       going to recover prudently invested funds.
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       1                 And so in this scenario it would be very hard

       2       to go talk to investors and say, well, anything above

       3       the breakeven, if we go over 3, $400 million, we're

       4       probably going to be able to recover, but by the way,

       5       lend us the money.  That's a tough, that's a tough thing

       6       for me to say to an investor.

       7                 If you go back to the breakeven, to the

       8       witness's recommended approach, that's kind of what

       9       you're doing.  You're saying you're going to be

      10       spending, you're going to be taking all the risk, but

      11       you're not going to get recovered for it.  And by the

      12       way, fuel prices go up, and let's assume that gas

      13       doubles again, customers get a huge windfall, but we

      14       would have lost an opportunity to recover any of those

      15       costs.

      16                 When you look at these projects, you have to

      17       look at not just the math.  And the math is good because

      18       they save today, on all of the current assumptions they

      19       save customers money.  I think you also have to put on a

      20       bigger hat and say, how is Florida best served?  How do

      21       we best serve our customers?  How do we bring in fuel

      22       diversity, continue to try to build some fuel diversity?

      23       And there aren't very many choices to do that right now.

      24                 I worry about continuing to build natural gas,

      25       but we don't have a lot of choices.  And it's still,
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       1       it's the right strategy, but any opportunity you have to

       2       get more something else, such as nuclear, into the mix,

       3       relatively economic nuclear, it's a win for our

       4       customers.

       5                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  When the need

       6       determination was granted, it is my belief, and I think

       7       it's clear in the order, it's my belief and was my view

       8       at the time that the additional fuel diversity was an

       9       important component of the project.  I continue to

      10       believe that, but I do not believe that we are

      11       litigating that today.

      12                 THE WITNESS:  Good.  Thank you.

      13                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  You made the -- and this

      14       has taken me a little further than I had intended to go,

      15       but you opened the door.  You made the statement a few

      16       moments ago that the company is taking on all the risk

      17       and all the benefits are accruing to the customers.

      18       Some might say, or an alternate view might be that the

      19       ratepayers are taking on risk under the statutory,

      20       excuse me, statutory scheme that we have, that the

      21       ratepayers are taking on risk by paying costs over the

      22       years in advance of those fuel cost benefits accruing.

      23       Would you agree that the ratepayers are taking on risk

      24       by absorbing costs prior to the project being up and

      25       running?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I would agree.  And if I

       2       gave, left you with the impression that -- when I said

       3       all the risk, I meant under the scheme of Witness

       4       Jacobs.

       5                 Absolutely, the customers are taking risk.

       6       The shareholders are also taking risks.  If you look at

       7       the time frame between '11 and '12, we will spend

       8       roughly $2.2 billion on these projects.  We will recover

       9       about $500 million.  So, you know, we're happy to have

      10       that, we're happy to have the direction from this

      11       Commission that ultimately there will be a path for the

      12       other.  So the customers clearly are taking risk.  I

      13       think it's a modest risk relative to the benefits that

      14       we believe the customers will get.  But, yes, they

      15       certainly are taking risk, and I didn't mean to argue

      16       otherwise.

      17                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Those benefits down the

      18       road.  Some might say that the Commission is also taking

      19       some risks.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  I understand that too.

      21                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis.

      23                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      24       A few questions for Mr. Olivera.

      25                 Mr. Jacobs, in his testimony, discussed the
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       1       changing of the EPU management team, and I would assume

       2       that the changing of the entire team is a difficult

       3       decision and one that is not made lightly.

       4                 Could you explain how you minimize and what

       5       the process was to change the team out so as not to

       6       affect those, that project?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you for the opportunity.

       8       We essentially only changed two people in the team, and

       9       I will tell you why we changed it.

      10                 The project -- you know, we have, I think, a

      11       fair amount of experience with these large construction

      12       projects.  You know, we have built four big power

      13       plants:  Turkey Point 5, three West County units.  So I

      14       think we have -- we kind of understand what it takes.

      15       This is arguably far bigger than those, but, you know,

      16       we have a lot of practice and a lot of people that are

      17       involved in it.

      18                 So we felt that as the project moved along

      19       from kind of a general scoping and general, sort of

      20       early procurement for the project, and we used a team

      21       that had a lot of engineering experience.  The

      22       individual who was heading that had ran nuclear

      23       engineering for a long time, been working in kind of a

      24       support role.  And as it evolved, you know, I for one

      25       felt strongly that we wanted somebody -- and because the
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       1       project was going to be done in operating power plants,

       2       which is different than doing this in a plant from

       3       scratch, I felt it was important to have somebody that

       4       had real operating experience running nuclear plants and

       5       had construction experience.  Which these two guys, as

       6       good as they are, didn't have that experience.  So that

       7       was really the decision behind asking Mr. Jones to

       8       really head this up.  We also brought in another

       9       individual who has very extensive construction

      10       experience and has also dealt a lot with the vendors in

      11       procurement, and so we felt that that was kind of a good

      12       combination.  And that was kind of -- in summary, that's

      13       the reason we made that change.

      14                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  But the process itself

      15       of making the change -- again, I want to focus on my

      16       assumption that, that any time you have a management

      17       change, that there's going to be some, there's a

      18       learning curve, there's -- I mean, what did you do or

      19       FPL do to kind of ease that transition?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  A lot of the people who were

      21       involved in doing the work were the same.  They

      22       didn't -- those people didn't change.  It was really

      23       more in providing the direction, it was really more in

      24       having experience in dealing with vendors in a very

      25       complicated project.  And you've already heard a lot
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       1       about kind of what the sausage (phonetic) making is,

       2       what it, what it takes to deal with a -- two very big

       3       vendors in Bechtel and Siemens that played a key, play a

       4       key role in these projects, and these people had that

       5       kind of experience.

       6                 And so, you know, the other, the other thing

       7       is you look to the rest of the team to provide

       8       continuity, and we still had the same oversight people

       9       involved.  You know, I continued to be involved.  The

      10       Chief Nuclear Officer continued to be monitoring this

      11       project pretty closely during that time.

      12                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And one last

      13       question, Mr. Chairman.

      14                 There's been a lot of discussion by Mr. Jacobs

      15       and others on, and yourself as far as the vendors and

      16       large vendors, and one of the concerns I have is that,

      17       you know, again, once you go down a certain path, that

      18       although decisions may be prudent, you're still somewhat

      19       at, at the mercy of the vendor that you've selected or

      20       the actions they take.  Do you feel that the existing

      21       controls that you have in, in working with those

      22       vendors, again, there was discussion on pushing back on

      23       the vendor, et cetera, with the management changes or

      24       other changes, do you feel there's enough of a control

      25       on the vendors to protect FPL and the ratepayers?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  I do.  I feel like we have very

       2       good processes, very good controls in place.  I take

       3       comfort in the Concentric report that's validated that

       4       and the Staff report that has also validated that.

       5                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I

       6       have no further questions.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       8                 Commissioner Brisé.

       9                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      10       I want to thank Mr. Olivera for being here.

      11                 I have two questions for you.  One of them --

      12       and both of these are more broad questions.

      13                 Referring back to the section of your

      14       testimony where you talk about what the Legislature did

      15       and what the Commission did with the intention of

      16       promoting the development of new nuclear, yesterday part

      17       of the discussion was the issue of the option; whether a

      18       company can decide to seek an option to build these

      19       projects but ultimately decide not to build the

      20       projects.  From your understanding, the intent of the

      21       Legislature was to actually have projects built.  Would

      22       we agree on that?

      23                 THE WITNESS:  Absolutely.

      24                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  So that would go to the

      25       idea that whatever projects that you all have undertaken
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       1       as a company, your intention is to build them?

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Correct.

       3                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  The second

       4       question that I have goes to if the Commission were to

       5       disallow the capital costs as asserted by Mr. Jacobs,

       6       what do you think it does to the overall framework of

       7       nuclear generation moving forward in this state?

       8                 THE WITNESS:  I think it would bring it to a

       9       halt.  We would do our very best to complete these

      10       projects.  But as I mentioned to Commissioner Edgar

      11       earlier, I'm not sure that we could go out and get the

      12       financing to complete these projects without the right

      13       framework and without -- and given -- I mean, if there

      14       was a change in, at least in my mind, the nuclear cost

      15       recovery rule, it would be a seismic change.  And it

      16       would ripple not just through nuclear energy, it would

      17       ripple through all other aspects of what we do.

      18                 And so I think it would certainly slow -- stop

      19       nuclear.  It would challenge us tremendously to finish

      20       these projects.  And I would say that it would have

      21       ramifications in other projects, including the

      22       modernizations on anything else that has large capital,

      23       because there would be a concern whether a decision made

      24       by one Commission where, that we go out and make huge,

      25       huge commitments for very long-term projects, whether
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       1       that could be readily undone.

       2                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Follow-up, Mr. Chairman.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

       4                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  But considering that, on

       5       the flip side of that, if the Commission looks, looks at

       6       a variety of decisions that have been made by the

       7       company and begins to question the validity of some of

       8       those decisions as being reasonable or not reasonable,

       9       you do agree that the Commission then would have the

      10       right and would be in its place to stop, or at least

      11       seriously question some of these projects, and that

      12       should not impact the broader regulatory framework in

      13       keeping nuclear projects moving forward in a positive

      14       direction in the state.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  I agree.  The Commission has

      16       wide discretion in, in what you do.  I'm just mentioning

      17       in the real world that I -- you know, I have to go out

      18       and explain to our investors what these projects

      19       represent and why these, these are a good thing.  And so

      20       I would hope that as you deliberate you factor into your

      21       decisions the impact that goes beyond any specific

      22       project.  The decisions that you make, they are

      23       extrapolated.  Right or wrong and whether we agree with

      24       it or not, they're extrapolated to any number of other

      25       investments.  Even things that you want us to do and are
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       1       in complete agreement and feel that they should go

       2       forward, they're extrapolated to those as well.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown.

       4                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       5                 Just a follow-up to some of your responses to

       6       some of the Commissioners' questions regarding

       7       financing.  Mr. Olivera, how do you feel that the

       8       current financial market today will affect the company's

       9       financing capabilities on these projects?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  Like everybody else, it's a

      11       little scary to watch the gyrations of the market.  So

      12       far, I mean, we've continued to have access to the

      13       capital markets.  We have a pretty extensive line of

      14       credit that we have frankly barely touched.  We -- sort

      15       of that's been our backup.  And so, you know, I can

      16       never -- I learned long ago never to say never.  But

      17       right now we have access to capital, even if it was on a

      18       short-term line of credit, that would allow us to

      19       continue working on these projects.

      20                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Redirect?

      22                 MR. ANDERSON:  Just very briefly.

      23                        REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      24       BY MR. ANDERSON:

      25            Q    Commissioner Brisé was asking you some
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       1       questions, looking back at the legislation which

       2       promoted new nuclear generation, and we've talked about

       3       economic fuel diversity benefits and savings for

       4       customers.  But was there an electric reliability aspect

       5       of that also?

       6            A    No, absolutely.  And I think I mentioned that

       7       when I was answering Commissioner Edgar's questions.

       8                 The nuclear projects, not only do they provide

       9       fuel benefit, but they also provide a huge reliability

      10       benefit, particularly the units in Miami-Dade County.

      11       We have roughly 25% of our customers are in the

      12       Miami-Dade County area, and so any generation we have

      13       close to the load center is more reliable than having to

      14       rely on generation that's far away and you have a lot of

      15       transmission lines that run for hundreds of miles.  So

      16       we always favor anything that increases the capacity in

      17       that area.

      18            Q    And we've talked about the company has, has

      19       high electric reliability, but should that be taken for

      20       granted?  Are there ever close calls that, in terms of

      21       electric reliability that nuclear generation can

      22       contribute to?

      23            A    I'm an old operating guy.  I never take

      24       reliability for granted.  It's hour by hour, minute by

      25       minute.  And so, no, we can't take that for granted.  We
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       1       can't take for granted the value of having sufficient

       2       generation reserves, and I think this Commission has

       3       historically recognized that.

       4                 MR. ANDERSON:  We have no further questions.

       5       Thank you.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We don't have any

       7       exhibits to enter into the record for this witness?  No?

       8                 MR. ANDERSON:  We do not.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sir, thank you very much for

      10       your testimony.

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you, sir.

      12                 MR. ANDERSON:  With the completion of

      13       Mr. Olivera's rebuttal testimony, may he be excused for

      14       the balance of the hearing?

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is there any -- is it okay

      16       for everybody for this witness to be excused?

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  No objection.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Intervenors?

      19                 Yes.

      20                 MR. ANDERSON:  May we proceed with our next

      21       witness?

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

      23                 MR. ANDERSON:  FPL calls as its next witness

      24       Terry Deason.

      25                             TERRY DEASON
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       1       was called as a rebuttal witness on behalf of Florida

       2       Power & Light Company and, having been duly sworn,

       3       testified as follows:

       4                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

       5       BY MR. ANDERSON:

       6            Q    Good morning, Mr. Deason.

       7            A    Good morning.

       8            Q    Have you been sworn?

       9            A    Yes, I was sworn this morning.

      10            Q    Would you please tell us your name and your

      11       business address.

      12            A    Yes.  My name is Terry Deason.  And my

      13       business address is 301 Bronough Street, Tallahassee,

      14       Florida, 32301.

      15            Q    By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

      16            A    I'm employed by the firm Radey, Thomas, Yon &

      17       Clark as a special consultant.

      18            Q    Have you prepared and caused to be filed 15

      19       pages of prefiled rebuttal testimony in this proceeding

      20       on July 25, 2011?

      21            A    Yes, I have.

      22            Q    Do you have any changes or revisions to your

      23       rebuttal testimony?

      24            A    I do not.

      25            Q    If I asked you the same questions contained in
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       1       your prefiled rebuttal testimony, would your answers be

       2       the same?

       3            A    Yes, they would.

       4                 MR. ANDERSON:  Chairman Graham, FPL asks that

       5       the prefiled rebuttal testimony of the witness be

       6       inserted into the record as though read.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert the

       8       prefiled -- we will insert the prefiled rebuttal

       9       testimony into the record as though read for Mr. Deason.

      10       BY MR. ANDERSON:

      11            Q    Mr. Deason, you have one exhibit which you

      12       called TD-1.  Is that right?

      13            A    Yes.

      14                 MR. ANDERSON:  This is shown on Staff's

      15       exhibit list, Mr. Chairman, as Exhibit 130.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. ANDERSON:

       2            Q    Mr. Deason, would you please go ahead and

       3       introduce, reintroduce yourself to the Commission and

       4       provide a summary of your, of your testimony.

       5            A    Commissioners, it's a pleasure to be back here

       6       in this hearing room again and to have this opportunity

       7       to provide testimony to you as you consider this very

       8       important matter.

       9                 OPC is recommending that FPL should be

      10       required to utilize a breakeven analysis to disallow

      11       otherwise prudent costs.  This is inappropriate and

      12       should be rejected.  OPC's recommendation is a midstream

      13       attempt to fundamentally and inappropriately change

      14       Florida's policy for determining nuclear cost recovery

      15       and feasibility and, if implemented, would have negative

      16       implications for FPL's customers.

      17                 OPC suggests that the Commission should no

      18       longer use the cumulative present value of revenue

      19       requirements, which I will refer to as present value

      20       analysis, as the means to determine cost-effectiveness

      21       and continued project viability.

      22                 For many years the Commission has consistently

      23       and appropriately used the present value approach to

      24       make decisions on cost-effectiveness in need

      25       determination proceedings and in the nuclear cost
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       1       recovery proceedings.  The present value approach

       2       appropriately considers forward-looking costs and should

       3       not be discontinued.

       4                 OPC's suggestion to replace the Commission's

       5       use of the present value analysis with a breakeven

       6       approach is inappropriate for many reasons and should be

       7       rejected.  OPC's proposed breakeven approach

       8       inappropriately relies on hindsight and has the effect

       9       of disallowing otherwise prudent costs.  This is

      10       contrary to the state's policy to promote nuclear

      11       generation and violates basic principles of ratemaking.

      12       All prudently incurred costs are to be included in

      13       rates.  OPC's suggested approach does not do this and

      14       violates this basic principle.

      15                 OPC's suggestion also materially distorts the

      16       balance of risk provided for by the Legislature and the

      17       Commission.  This could have severe negative

      18       consequences for customers by limiting options for new

      19       generation needed to cost-effectively and reliably serve

      20       them.  In essence, OPC's suggestion is a risk-sharing

      21       mechanism which has been previously rejected and

      22       determined by the Commission to be impermissible.

      23                 OPC also alleges that FPL's and this decision,

      24       this Commission's decision to expedite the extended

      25       power uprates was imprudent.  I cannot agree that this
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       1       decision was imprudent.  At the time FPL proposed and

       2       the Commission approved the expedited schedule, FPL was

       3       appropriately responding to the circumstances at the

       4       time.  After being encouraged to consider ways to

       5       increase its fuel diversity, FPL proposed the Glades

       6       Power Park, two coal-fired units in Glades County.

       7       These units were rejected by the Commission.

       8                 FPL then proposed and the Commission approved

       9       the expedited schedule for the EPU project.  This was

      10       done to cost-effectively meet the need for capacity and

      11       energy, to increase fuel diversity, to minimize

      12       greenhouse gas emissions, and to achieve fuel savings

      13       for customers as quickly as possible.

      14                 Such actions by FPL should be encouraged.

      15       OPC's allegation of imprudence ignores these realities

      16       and penalizes FPL for proposing a cost-effective

      17       solution to meet these needs and achieve these goals.

      18                 FPL has appropriately relied upon the

      19       Commission's decisions to approve the expedited

      20       schedule.  It is inappropriate to attempt to litigate

      21       that now.  Good regulation should maintain consistent

      22       policies that can be relied upon and which encourage

      23       utilities to make aggressive and prudent decisions to

      24       maximize customer benefits.  OPC's suggestion of

      25       imprudence would send the wrong message and have the
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       1       opposite effect.

       2                 That concludes my summary.

       3                 MR. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. Deason.

       4                 The witness is available for

       5       cross-examination, Chairman Graham.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       7                 Intervenors?  Ms. Kaufman.

       8                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       9       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      10            Q    Good morning, Mr. Deason.  I've often wanted

      11       to cross-examine you.

      12            A    I bet you have.

      13                 (Laughter.)

      14                 If I were in your place, I would relish the

      15       opportunity.

      16            Q    You know I'm just kidding you.

      17            A    I think back, was I ever mean to you before?

      18            Q    Never.  Always the consummate gentleman.

      19                 As I understand your testimony, and I think

      20       you referenced this in your summary, you take issue with

      21       Mr. Jacobs' suggestion that the Commission look at a

      22       breakeven analysis, and you've referenced that.

      23                 And you also claim that that kind of analysis

      24       would require the Commission to engage in hindsight; is

      25       that correct?
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       1            A    Yes.

       2            Q    Okay.  Would you agree with me that as the

       3       Commission evaluates the cost-effectiveness of a project

       4       each year as it goes forward, it should be able to use

       5       the tools that it finds the most appropriate to look at

       6       the project?

       7            A    Absolutely.  The Commission should avail

       8       itself of the tools that it thinks are appropriate.  The

       9       present value analysis is an appropriate tool, is one

      10       the Commission has relied upon in the past.  And, and a

      11       breakeven analysis can also be used to look at whether a

      12       project should continue.

      13                 The problem I have is with the suggestion that

      14       a breakeven analysis, that that tool be used in an

      15       inappropriate manner, that manner being to basically put

      16       a cap on costs that otherwise would have been determined

      17       to be prudent.  That is not the purpose, that is not the

      18       intent, that is not correct use of a breakeven analysis.

      19            Q    But I think that you agreed that the use of a

      20       breakeven analysis in this situation could be

      21       appropriate if the Commission deems it to provide

      22       information that they find relevant.

      23            A    Yes, it could be used by the Commission, not

      24       to determine what costs should be recoverable, but to

      25       determine the continued viability of the project.
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       1                 One needs to understand that a breakeven

       2       analysis is just a refinement of the present value

       3       analysis.  The present value analysis compares two

       4       alternatives and determines which of those is the most

       5       cost-effective alternative.  A breakeven analysis just

       6       takes that one, takes it a step and looks and determines

       7       the magnitude of the difference in costs.

       8                 And if there are two projects and there's a

       9       difference, a beta of one million, that means that one

      10       is $1 million more cost-effective than the other, and

      11       that the other project, that those costs, there's a $1

      12       million difference and that's the breakeven point.

      13       Costs for the project that you approve could increase by

      14       $1 million and it becomes breakeven with the project

      15       that you're comparing it against.

      16            Q    But certainly if the Commission wanted to

      17       request the company to perform a breakeven analysis,

      18       that would -- in your view, would that be something the

      19       company would be willing to provide?

      20            A    I can't speak for the company in that regard.

      21       I believe that question was asked to Mr., perhaps

      22       Mr. Sim yesterday.  I think the record speaks for

      23       itself.  But as I recall, I think he indicated that is

      24       an analysis that FPL can perform, perhaps routinely

      25       performs.  But the point that needs to be made to the
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       1       Commission is that you do not use that analysis as a

       2       tool for -- and achieve a purpose for a never -- it was

       3       never intended, it was never intended to be a tool to

       4       deny the recoverability of otherwise prudently incurred

       5       costs.  That's the point.

       6            Q    Mr. Deason, I apologize for not recalling.

       7       Were you on the Commission when the determination of

       8       need for the EPU was granted?

       9            A    I was not.

      10            Q    Okay.  Have you reviewed the record in that

      11       case in preparation for your comments here today?

      12            A    To a limited extent.  I would not call it a

      13       thorough review of that record.  I do recall that the,

      14       that the matter was actually presented to the Commission

      15       in the form of a stipulation.  I do recall -- I looked

      16       at some of the information requests or interrogatories

      17       that the Staff submitted, and it appeared to me the

      18       Staff did a very thorough analysis, as they always do on

      19       need determination proceedings, but I do not believe

      20       there were other -- any other Intervenors in the case.

      21            Q    Well, from your limited review, as you've

      22       said, of the record, do you recall whether you ever saw

      23       the term "fast tracked" used by anybody in the documents

      24       that you reviewed?

      25            A    No.  I, I did not see the term "fast track" in
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       1       my limited review, but I did see terms used.  Expedited,

       2       quickest feasible manner, or things similar to that.

       3       But, no, the term "fast track," I did not see that

       4       particular term.

       5            Q    Have you, have you been here -- were you here

       6       yesterday?  Have you been in the hearing room?

       7            A    I was not in the hearing room yesterday.  I

       8       did come out here yesterday evening about 5:30, quarter

       9       to 6:00, just in case things were moving so rapidly as

      10       to whether I would be needed, but that was my limited

      11       extent to being here yesterday.

      12            Q    Okay.  You reviewed the testimony in this

      13       case, have you not?  You certainly reviewed Dr. Jacobs'

      14       testimony.

      15            A    Yes, I did.

      16            Q    Okay.  And you would agree with me that there

      17       is a rather strenuous debate among the parties as to

      18       whether expedited is the same thing as fast tracked?

      19            A    Yes, I do understand that there is a

      20       difference of opinion as to whether those terminologies

      21       mean something different as they are used in the context

      22       of the issues in this case.

      23                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Deason.  It was a

      24       pleasure.

      25                          CROSS EXAMINATION
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       1       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       2            Q    Hello, Mr. Deason.

       3            A    Hello.

       4            Q    Based upon your prefiled testimony and your

       5       summary, as I understand it, you object to the use of a

       6       breakeven analysis to disallow costs that would

       7       otherwise be deemed prudent; is that correct?

       8            A    That is correct.

       9                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  No further questions.

      10                 MR. WHITLOCK:  No questions for this witness,

      11       Mr. Chairman.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

      13                 MR. YOUNG:  No questions.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Edgar.

      15                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      16                 Hello, Mr. Deason.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Hello, Commissioner.

      18                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  You have in your prefiled

      19       and also in response to questions talked to us here

      20       today a good amount about that, the issue of the

      21       breakeven analysis.  I'd like to approach that from a

      22       slightly different point and pose to you, in light of

      23       your unique experience working as a consumer advocate

      24       and also as a regulator, could you speak to us from your

      25       experience and with your expertise about the issue of
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       1       separate long-term feasibility analyses versus

       2       comprehensive?

       3                 THE WITNESS:  I need some clarification on

       4       your question.  Are you talking about in the context of

       5       the EPU uprate project and it being conducted at two

       6       different plant sites?

       7                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yes.  Yes, I am.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  I think it is, it is

       9       important for the Commission to consider the context in

      10       which the EPU project was presented to it at the time of

      11       the need determination.  It was presented as one

      12       project, and the cost estimates and the comparison to

      13       other alternatives were done in the context of one

      14       project.  I think for consistency that it needs to be,

      15       to continue to be, to be viewed as one project.

      16                 And the reason is because when the decision

      17       was made that it was the most cost-effective

      18       alternative, there was a need of a certain magnitude

      19       that needed to be met, and that need was as a result of

      20       the fact that the Commission denied the Glades power

      21       project.  I'm not taking issue with the Commission's

      22       decision to deny that, but it is a reality.

      23                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Which was a vote that I

      24       made.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  I didn't participate in that
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       1       case.  But I do recall the Commission strongly

       2       encouraging FPL, all of Florida's utilities, perhaps FPL

       3       in particular, to look at what I call solid based, solid

       4       fuel generating alternatives, which would either be

       5       nuclear or coal, because there was concern about a lack

       6       of fuel diversity and perhaps an overreliance on natural

       7       gas generation.

       8                 And it was at the encouragement of the

       9       Commission that the Glades project was studied and it

      10       was proposed and it was fully vetted at the Commission

      11       and a decision was reached.  And that's fine, that's the

      12       way the process should work, and a decision was made.

      13                 But I think the Commission should be cognizant

      14       that it put FPL in the position of having to determine

      15       how they could cost-effectively meet the demand that was

      16       envisioned in the 2012/2013 time frame, how they could

      17       do that while also minimizing greenhouse gas emissions,

      18       while increasing fuel diversity, and doing all of that

      19       in a cost-effective manner.

      20                 And that was as a result that FPL came forward

      21       with the EPU project, and it was one project to meet

      22       that demand.  Both of these projects, if you want to say

      23       they were separate projects, were needed to meet the

      24       demand.

      25                 But beyond that, the cost-effectiveness was
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       1       looked at as one project, and to, now to sever that and

       2       say that they are standalone projects and one could

       3       proceed or one could not, I think that's placing a lot

       4       in jeopardy.

       5                 There's also been testimony in this proceeding

       6       about the location of generation and how that's

       7       important for liability purposes and in terms of perhaps

       8       additional transmission costs.  I know there's an

       9       allegation by FP -- I mean by OPC that one of the, one

      10       of the, I think it's Turkey Point, that it may not

      11       appear to be as cost-effective because of the fact that

      12       the life of that plant is not as great as the remaining

      13       life of the other nuclear plant.

      14                 Well, I think the Commission should obviously

      15       ask whether there's a possibility of the life being

      16       extended at Turkey Point.  I don't have an answer to

      17       that question, but that is perhaps a possibility.

      18                 But also the Commission has heard testimony

      19       about the necessity of having generation located close

      20       to load.  So that's another aspect.  I think the fact

      21       that the, that the generation was going to be, from

      22       Turkey Point was going to be closer to load was a

      23       consideration.  I know it was something that Staff

      24       explored in their interrogatories as they posed them to

      25       FPL in terms of whether the project was cost-effective,
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       1       and it was a factor.

       2                 So to ignore the benefits and the cost

       3       parameters that were explored in the need determination

       4       and at this point, some years later, to sever that -- I

       5       think it could be done.  I would use extreme caution

       6       before doing so.  I just think that it could, it could,

       7       it could put some things in jeopardy.

       8                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I remember and recognize

       9       and, you know, appreciate the points that you're making,

      10       realizing that at the time the project was presented as

      11       a whole as opposed to separate components, and that

      12       there was the belief and the expectation that that would

      13       therefore include some efficiencies and some additional

      14       cost-effectiveness and some, you know, additional

      15       benefits of, of approaching it that way.

      16                 But would you agree that, by virtue of a

      17       project being presented in that way, does not preclude

      18       the Commission's responsibility or authority to analyze

      19       a project as separate components?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  I would agree with that,

      21       Commissioner.  My only caution would be to look at it,

      22       make sure it's the right thing to do, realize that there

      23       could be other consequences of breaking it apart.  But,

      24       yes, I think it's within the Commission's discretion to

      25       do that.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'm glad you asked that

       3       question.  You took it right out of my mouth.

       4                 Commissioner Brisé.

       5                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       6                 Mr. Deason, happy to see you again.  I have a

       7       couple of questions, and they'll be based from your

       8       testimony.  Go to page 3 on your testimony where on line

       9       12 -- the question is, "Why do you disagree with the

      10       recommendation of Witnesses Jacobs and Smith?"

      11                 And, one, you have that the recommendation

      12       addresses a midstream attempt to fundamentally,

      13       fundamentally and inappropriately change the standard

      14       for determining cost recovery through the nuclear

      15       recovery clause.  So I suppose that that goes to the

      16       issue of finality to a certain degree.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, Commissioner, it does.  It

      18       goes to, I think, the need for finality and how that was

      19       expressed by the Legislature and how the Commission

      20       adopted its rule.  With the annual prudence reviews and

      21       the finality of those, I think, yes, it goes to the

      22       heart of that.  And I think that OPC's suggestion is, is

      23       midstream in the fact that the Commission has already

      24       determined a need for the project and it's determined

      25       that the, the expedited approach was the appropriate
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       1       approach.

       2                 So, yeah, I would consider that it would be a

       3       midstream and it would be counter to the policy of the

       4       State of Florida to determine finality of costs based

       5       upon annual prudence reviews.

       6                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Now, on, on page 4 you

       7       address the issue, starting at line 5, 5 through 14,

       8       whether the breakeven alternative is needed to protect

       9       customers from unreasonable costs, "Do you agree?"

      10                 The question that I have is do you agree for

      11       this instant or is that something that the Commission

      12       should potentially look at moving forward?

      13                 THE WITNESS:  I believe -- the answer to your

      14       question is both.  I think that my answer is in terms of

      15       where we find us, where we find ourselves at this point,

      16       as well on a moving forward basis.

      17                 You have to realize, Commissioner, that the

      18       breakeven analysis being proposed by OPC, it doesn't

      19       find fault with any particular costs.  In fact, I think

      20       this testimony in this case is devoid of there being any

      21       specific cost that was incurred by FPL that was deemed

      22       to be imprudent.

      23                 What it does is it relies upon hindsight,

      24       relies upon sunk costs, and an ever-changing breakeven

      25       analysis which is going to change with time.  That
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       1       breakeven analysis is going to change as the price of

       2       gas changes, perhaps as inflation changes, cost of

       3       capital changes, or, or cost of materials change, or --

       4       it's going to change as well.

       5                 Sitting here today, we don't know what the

       6       relationship is going to be with a breakeven analysis at

       7       the time that these, this EPU project is completed.  It

       8       could be below that, it could be above.  But the fact

       9       that it is above does not mean that there has been one

      10       dime of cost incurred imprudently, and that's how it

      11       violates the policy that has been established by the

      12       Legislature and this Commission.

      13                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  So final question.  So

      14       from your perspective, not only in this instant but as

      15       an overarching policy for the Commission, it would be

      16       bad policy to pursue that, this, that approach?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, it would be bad policy.  It

      18       would be inconsistent with policy already established.

      19       And as you heard Mr. Olivera say, he feels like that it

      20       would -- could possibly prevent the company from doing

      21       additional nuclear projects just from the fact of the

      22       adverse impacts on the investment community.

      23                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Redirect?

      25                 MR. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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       1                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

       2       BY MR. ANDERSON:

       3            Q    Mr. Deason, Ms. Kaufman asked you if you

       4       recalled seeing the word "fast track" in the nuclear

       5       uprate need determination information.  Do you recall

       6       that?

       7            A    Yes.

       8            Q    And you told us that you saw information about

       9       completing the project as soon as practicable and

      10       expedited and those things; right?

      11            A    Yes.  I did see that terminology.

      12            Q    You are -- are you aware that the Commission

      13       determined in the 2008 need order that the uprates were

      14       approved to fulfill a 2012 reserve resource need for

      15       FPL?

      16            A    Yes, I saw that.  And that was, that was the

      17       need -- that was determined that was the time frame.

      18       And the only way that those projects could have been

      19       completed is if it had been expedited.  Now whether

      20       someone wants to use the term fast track or not, you

      21       know, I don't want to quibble with that.  But I think

      22       the Commission did recognize to have these plants in

      23       place to meet the need for the time frame envisioned,

      24       2012 and 2013, that these projects had to be expedited.

      25            Q    In the course of your work you mentioned that
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       1       you reviewed discovery that Staff propounded on the

       2       company and the company responded to in that case; is

       3       that right?

       4            A    Yes, I did review that.

       5            Q    From your review was it understood that this

       6       was a complex project?

       7            A    Yes, it was -- to my -- in my opinion, yes.  I

       8       think certainly the, the scope and the, the, the

       9       in-depth questions that were asked by Staff in their

      10       review, I think it was obvious that it was a complicated

      11       project.

      12            Q    Was there testing and probing of the inputs to

      13       the economic analysis submitted in the proceeding?

      14            A    Yes.  It was -- yes.  As, as is the case in

      15       all need determinations, it was certainly the case for

      16       the need determination for these projects as well.

      17       There were a number of scenarios that were reviewed that

      18       could affect the outcome of that, and the analysis was

      19       done which showed that these projects were -- they were

      20       either cost-effective in all scenarios or the vast

      21       majority of the scenarios.

      22            Q    And you're familiar from your review of

      23       Dr. Jacobs' testimony that he points to the geographic

      24       distance of the plants and the differences in license

      25       terms and things like that, those are the part of the
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       1       reasons Dr. Jacobs says a different analysis should be

       2       done; is that right?

       3            A    I'm sorry.  Could you repeat the question?

       4            Q    Okay.  Focusing on the discovery you reviewed

       5       in the need determination case, did -- was there

       6       investigation and probing of the different license lives

       7       of the plants?

       8            A    Honestly, I just don't remember that at this

       9       point based upon my review.

      10            Q    Okay.  Okay.  That's fine.

      11                 Did Public Counsel submit any testimony in the

      12       need determination for your review?

      13            A    No, Public Counsel did not.  It was my

      14       understanding there were no Intervenors in the case.

      15            Q    If Public Counsel had wanted to challenge the

      16       timing or method of the project, call it expedited or

      17       call it fast track or call it Bob --

      18                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I object to this line of

      19       questioning as beyond the scope of cross-examination.

      20                 MR. ANDERSON:  I believe it's directly within

      21       the scope because Ms. Kaufman asked about the 2007 need

      22       determination proceeding.

      23                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  She didn't ask anything about

      24       OPC's participation.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Wait a second.  I do not
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       1       remember what the question was.  We can get the court

       2       reporter to bring it back.

       3                 MR. ANDERSON:  May I rephrase a different

       4       question?  Would that be better?

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's try that.

       6                 MR. ANDERSON:  Okay.

       7       BY MR. ANDERSON:

       8            Q    Mr. Deason, you noted there were no

       9       Intervenors; is that correct?

      10            A    That's correct.

      11            Q    Is it fair to say that if an Intervenor wanted

      12       to participate, they could have challenged the timing or

      13       method of the project by whether the project was

      14       expedited or fast tracked?

      15            A    Yes.  The timing of a project would be a

      16       legitimate issue that could be raised in any need

      17       determination proceeding as to what -- and as to whether

      18       the need actually exists that is being, being presented.

      19       And the Commission looks at that and the timing of that

      20       and whether there are other alternatives which could

      21       meet that need, such as conservation efforts and things

      22       of that nature.

      23            Q    Regardless of who would have or could have

      24       raised that, is it good policy to permit years later

      25       relitigation of that?
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       1            A    Well, I think this --

       2                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Chairman, I'm going to object.

       3       I think this is way beyond the scope of my

       4       cross-examination.  And I think Mr. Deason has already

       5       made his opinions clear.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I have to agree with her.

       7                 MR. ANDERSON:  We have no further questions.

       8       Thanks.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

      10                 We have some exhibits to enter into the

      11       record?

      12                 MR. ANDERSON:  Yes, we do.  We have Exhibit

      13       130.  FPL offers Exhibit 130 into evidence.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter Exhibit 130

      15       into the record.  Any objections to that?

      16                 MR. YOUNG:  No objections.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Anything else for

      18       this witness?

      19                 (Exhibit 130 admitted into evidence.)

      20                 MR. ANDERSON:  No, sir.  We would ask that

      21       Mr. Deason be excused for the balance of the hearing.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any objections to that?

      23                 Seeing none, Mr. Deason, thank you for your

      24       testimony today.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.
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